IN THE

SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

LAVARESS HOPKINS)	
)	
Petitioner,)	
)	CASE NO. SC
vs.)	DCA CASE NO. 4D09-1152
)	
STATE OF FLORIDA,)	
)	
Respondent.)	
)	
)	

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

CAREY HAUGHWOUT Public Defender

Tom Wm. Odom Assistant Public Defender 15th Judicial Circuit of Florida Criminal Justice Building/6th Floor 421 3rd Street West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 (561) 355-7600

Florida Bar No. 362905 todom@pd15.state.fl.us

Counsel for Petitioner

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent charged petitioner with battery by a detainee in a juvenile detention facility in violation of sections 784.03 and 784.082, Florida Statutes (2007). Section 784.082 is an enhancement statute that reclassifies simple battery from a first degree misdemeanor to a third degree felony "[w]henever a person who is being detained in a prison, jail, or other detention facility is charged with committing . . . a battery . . . upon any other detainee in the detention facility, . . ." § 784.082(3), Fla. Stat. (2007). Petitioner filed a motion to dismiss and the trial court granted the motion under the authority of *T.C. v. State*, 852 So.2d 276 (Fla. 1st DCA 2003). Respondent took appeal before the Fourth District Court of Appeals.

The Fourth District Court reversed the granting of the motion to dismiss citing *J.A. v. State*, 743 So.2d 601 (Fla. 4th DCA 1999), and *J.A.D. v. State*, 855 So.2d 1199 (Fla. 5th DCA 2003), and remanded the case for reinstatement of the charge. *State v. Hopkins*, 35 Fla. L. Weekly D2622 (Fla. 4th DCA Dec. 1, 2010). On December 16, 2010, petitioner filed notice of intent to invoke the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court based on a conflict between this decision and that of other district courts of appeal. This jurisdictional brief follows.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The opinion of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in *State v. Hopkins*, 35 Fla. L. Weekly D2622 (Fla. 4th DCA Dec. 1, 2010), is in express and direct conflict with the opinion of *T.C. v. State*, 852 So.2d 276 (Fla. 1st DCA 2003), on the same question of law, whether a child in a juvenile detention facility may be charged with battery by a detainee pursuant to Florida Statutes section 784.082.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT HAS JURISDICTION TO REVIEW *STATE V. HOPKINS*, 35 FLA. L. WEEKLY D2622 (FLA. 4TH DCA DEC. 1, 2010), WHERE THE DECISION RENDERED IS IN EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT WITH *T.C. v. STATE*, 852 So.2d 276 (Fla. 4th DCA 2003).

Article V, § 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution vests this Court with jurisdiction to "review any decision of a district court of appeal . . . that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another district court of appeal . . . on the same question of law." Accord Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv). In Nielson v. City of Sarasota, 117 So.2d 731 (Fla. 1960), this Court discussed "conflict jurisdiction" stating that "[i]t is the announcement of a conflicting rule of law that conveys jurisdiction to us to review the decision of the Court of Appeal." *Id.*, at 734; accord Kaigler v. State, 944 So.2d 340 (Fla. 2006); J.I.S. v. State, 930 So.2d 587 (Fla. 2006). "The constitutional standard is whether the decisions of the District Court on its face collides with a prior decision of this Court, or another District Court, on the same point of law so as to create an inconsistency or conflict among precedents." Kincaid v. World Insurance Co., 157 So.2d 517, 518 (Fla. 1963). The Fourth District Court of Appeal's decision is in express and direct conflict with the decision of another district court on the same question of law.

In reversing the granting of the motion to dismiss, the Fourth District Court cited its own precedent of *J.A. v. State*, 743 So.2d 601 (Fla. 4th DCA 1999), as well

as the Fifth District Court's precedent in J.A.D. v. State, 855 So.2d 1199 (Fla. 5th DCA 2003). State v. Hopkins, 35 Fla. L. Weekly D2622 (Fla. 4th DCA Dec. 1, In both J.A. and J.A.D., the district courts affirmed adjudications of juveniles found guilty of battery on a fellow detainee in violation of Florida Statute section 784.082. But the lower trial court dismissed the charge while relying on the First District Court's opinion in T.C. v. State, 852 So.2d 276 (Fla. 1st DCA In T.C., the First District Court reversed the third degree felony 2003). delinquency adjudication for battery by a detainee because "[n]othing in section 784.082 indicates that the statute applies to juveniles held in juvenile facilities." *Id*. The decision of the Fourth District Court in *Hopkins* is thus in express and direct conflict with the decision of the First District Court in T.C. on the question whether a child in a detention facility who commits simple battery on a fellow detainee is guilty of a misdemeanor or a felony.

CONCLUSION

Petitioner has demonstrated the existence of express and direct conflict between the opinion on review and the opinion of another District Court of Appeal and, as a result, this Court should grant the petition for discretionary review.