IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. SC10-2483

LAVARESS HOPKINS,

Petitioner,

- versus -

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

PAMELA JO BONDI Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

CELIA A. TERENZIO Assistant Attorney General Chief, West Palm Beach Bureau Florida Bar No. 0656879

KATHERINE Y. MCINTIRE Assistant Attorney General Florida Bar No. 0521159 1515 North Flagler Drive, Ninth Floor West Palm Beach, FL 33401 Tel: (561) 837-5000 Fax: (561) 837-5099 Counsel for Respondent

Preliminary Statement

Petitioner was the Defendant and Respondent was the Prosecution in the Criminal Division of the Circuit Court of the Nineteenth Judicial Circuit, in and for St. Lucie County, Florida. Petitioner was Appellant and Respondent was Appellee in the District Court of Appeal of Florida, Fourth District. In this brief, the parties shall be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court except that Respondent may also be referred to as the State.

Statement Of The Case And Facts

(limited to the issue of jurisdiction)

"The jurisdictional brief should be a short, concise statement of the grounds for invoking jurisdiction and the necessary facts. It is not appropriate to argue the merits of the substantive issues involved in the case or discuss any matters not relevant to the threshold jurisdictional issue". <u>See</u>, Committee Notes for 1970 Amendment of Rule 9.120.

Respondent charged Petitioner below with battery by a detainee in violation of §§784.03 and 784.082, Florida Statutes (2009). Petitioner filed a motion to dismiss arguing that under <u>T.C. v. State</u>, 852 So.2d 276 (Fla. 1st DCA 2003), "[a]n alleged battery occurring at the hands of a juvenile detained in the juvenile detained facility cannot under the law be charged as battery by detainee."

Because Respondent, below, did not provide any cases to the court contradicting Petitioner's position, the trial court, all the while disagreeing with the proposition, dismissed Petitioner's cause.

On appeal, the Fourth District Court of Appeal noted that in the past, both it and the Fifth District Court of Appeal, have affirmed juvenile adjudications on the charge of battery by a detainee. Because the trial court was not made aware of the decisions in <u>J.A. v. State</u>, 743 So.2d 601 (Fla. 4th DCA 1999) and <u>J.A.D. v. State</u>, 855 So.2d 1199 (Fla. 5th DCA 2003) before dismissing Petitioner's charges, the trial court's order was reversed. Petitioner now seeks review of the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal based on conflict jurisdiction.

Summary Of The Argument

This Court does not have jurisdiction to review the instant case. The decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in the instant case does not expressly and directly conflict with the decision of the First District in <u>T.C. v.</u> <u>State</u>, 852 So.2d 276 (Fla. 1st DCA 2003). Therefore, this Court should not review the case at bar and should dismiss the Petitioner's case.

Argument

THE DECISION OF THE FOURTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL IN THE INSTANT CASE DOES NOT CONFLICT WITH THE DECISION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT IN <u>T.C. v. STATE</u>, 852 So.2d 276 (FLA. 1st DCA 2003)

Petitioner alleges that the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal in <u>State v. Hopkins</u>, 47 So.3d 974 (Fla. 4th DCA 2010) expressly and directly conflicts with the decision of the First District in <u>T.C. v. State</u>, 852 So.2d 276 (Fla. <u>1st DCA 2003)</u>.

Article V, § 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution restricts this Court's review of a district court of appeal's decision only if it expressly conflicts with a decision of this Court or of another district court of appeal. It is not enough to show that the district court's decision is effectively in conflict with other appellate decisions. This Court's jurisdiction to review the Fourth District's decision in this case may only be invoked by either the announcement of a rule of law which conflicts with a law previously announced by this Court or another district court of appeal or by the application of a rule of law to produce a different result in a case which involves substantially the same facts as a prior case. <u>Mancini v. State</u>, 312 So. 2d 732, 733 (Fla. 1975).

The term "expressly" requires some written representation or expression of

the legal grounds supporting the decision under review. Jenkins v. State, 385 So. 2d 1356 (Fla. 1980). A decision of a district court of appeal is no longer reviewable on the ground that an examination of the record would show that it is in conflict with another appellate decision; it is reviewable if the conflict can be demonstrated from the district court of appeal's opinion itself. The district court of appeal must at least address the legal principles which were applied as a basis for the decision. Ford Motor Co. v. Kikis, 401 So. 2d 1341, 1342 (Fla. 1981).

When determining whether conflict jurisdiction exists, this Court is limited to the facts which appear on the face of the opinion. <u>White Constr. Co. v. Dupont</u>, 455 So. 2d 1026 (Fla. 1984). In the past, this Court has held that it would not exercise its discretion where the opinion below established no point of law contrary to the decision of this Court or of another district court of appeal. <u>The Florida Star v. B.J.F.</u>, 530 So. 2d 286, 289 (Fla. 1988). "Conflict between decisions must be express and direct, <u>i.e.</u>, it must appear within the four corners of the majority decision.' In other words, inherent or so called 'implied' conflict may no longer serve as a basis for this Court's jurisdiction." <u>State, Department of Health v. National Adoption Counseling Service, Inc.</u>, 498 So. 2d 888, 889 (Fla. 1986) (<u>quoting Reaves v. State</u>, 485 So. 2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986)).

The Fourth District's opinion in the case at bar does not establish conflict

with the First District's opinion in <u>T.C.</u> for purposes of this Court's jurisdiction. Although, in <u>T.C.</u>, the First District directly addressed their opinion on the legality of a juvenile's adjudication on the charge of battery in a detention facility, the Fourth District did not here. Instead, in reversing the trial court's order dismissing Petitioner's charges, the Fourth District cited the fact that the trial court was unaware of caselaw which supported a contrary view when erroneously dismissing the charges against Petitioner. Indeed, the Fourth District, in their opinion, did not "[announce]...a rule of law which conflicts with a law previously announced by...another district court of appeal" but merely pointed out that, contrary to what was suggested to the trial court, <u>T.C.</u> was not controlling authority. <u>Mancini v.</u> State, 312 So. 2d at 733.

Notably, Petitioner does not allege that the Fourth District's opinion here announces a rule of law which conflicts with that of the First District. Instead, he attempts to gain review by pointing out that "[i]n both <u>J.A.</u> and <u>J.A.D.</u>¹, the district courts affirmed adjudications of juveniles found guilty of battery on a fellow detainee...". Petitioner's Jurisdictional Brief, 4. However, neither <u>J.A.</u> nor <u>J.A.D.</u> can form the basis of conflict where they are not before this Court. Further, their mere reference in the Fourth's opinion can hardly be considered a full address of

¹ The cases that the Fourth District Court of Appeal noted were not brought to the

its opinion on the legality of charging a juvenile with battery in a detention facility. <u>Ford Motor Co. v. Kikis</u>, 401 So. 2d 1341, 1342 (Fla. 1981).

At bar, it is clear that the Fourth District's opinion in the instant case did not announce and explain its position on the legality of charging a juvenile with battery in a detention facility in a fashion which conflicts with <u>T.C.</u> Instead, the Fourth District reversed the trial court's ruling because it was based on an inaccurate rendition of the relevant caselaw. Accordingly, this Court should decline to review the decision of the Fourth District in this case.

trial court's attention.

Conclusion

WHEREFORE, based on the foregoing argument and authorities, Respondent respectfully submits that this Court should decline to grant review in the above-styled cause.